$\underline{\text{BYLAWS}}$

of

THE CITY OF PORT ANGELES, WASHINGTON PLANNING COMMISSION (Amended April 14, 2021)

ARTICLE I - NAME

Section 1. Name

The official name of the organization shall be "The City of Port Angeles, Washington, Planning Commission."

ARTICLE II - OFFICIAL SEAT

Section 1. Official Seat

The official seat of the Planning Commission shall be in the City Hall of Port Angeles, Washington, 321 East Fifth Street, and meetings shall be held there except on such occasions and at such times as the Commission may, by a majority vote of those present at any regular, recessed, or special meeting, otherwise direct.

ARTICLE III - OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers

The elective officers of the Planning Commission shall consist of a Chair and Vice-Chair.

Section 2. Nomination and Election of Officers

Nomination of elective officers shall be made from the floor at the annual election meeting which shall be held at the last regular meeting of March of each year. The election shall follow immediately thereafter. A nominee receiving a majority vote of those present at the election meeting shall be declared elected. If meetings cannot occur because of an unforeseen circumstance, nominations and elections shall take place at the next available meeting.

Section 3. Terms of Officers

The term of office for elective officers-shall begin in April and shall continue for a term of one year, or until nominations or elections have taken place at the next available meeting date. Elective officers shall serve no more than two consecutive terms in the same office.

Section 4. Vacancies in Offices

Vacancies in elective offices shall be filled immediately by regular election procedure for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 5. Duties of Officers

(a) Chair

The Chair shall preside at all meetings and public hearings of the Planning Commission and shall call special meetings when he/she deems it necessary or is required to do so.

They shall appoint all committees, shall be an ex-officio member of each, without the power to vote. They shall sign the minutes of Planning Commission meetings and all official papers and plans involving the authority of the Planning Commission which are then transmitted to the City Council. The Chair shall have the privilege of discussing all matters before the Planning Commission and voting thereon. They shall have all the duties normally conferred by parliamentary usage on such officers and shall perform such other duties as may be ordered by the Planning Commission except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, in other Planning Commission regulations, or in City Ordinances.

(b) <u>Vice-Chair</u>

The Vice-Chair shall assume the duties and powers of the Chair in his or her absence. If the Chair and Vice-Chair are both absent, the Planning Commission members may elect a temporary chair by a majority vote of those present at a regular, recessed, or special meeting, who shall assume the duties and powers of the Chair or Vice-Chair during their absence.

(c) Executive Secretary

The Executive Secretary is a staff appointed position. The Executive Secretary shall keep the minutes of all regular, recessed, and special meetings of the Planning Commission; such minutes shall be approved by the Planning Commission. They shall also keep the minutes of Planning Commission committee meetings when requested to do so. They shall give notice of all regular and special meetings to Planning Commission members, shall prepare with the Chair the agenda of regular and special meetings, shall serve proper and legal notice of all public hearings, and shall draft and sign the routine correspondence of the Planning Commission. The Executive Secretary shall maintain a file of all studies, plans, reports, recommendations, and official records of the Planning Commission and perform such other duties as are normally carried out by a secretary and as the Planning Commission may determine.

ARTICLE IV - MEETINGS

Section 1. Regular Meetings: Time and Place

Regular monthly meetings shall be held on the second and/or fourth Wednesdays of each month beginning at 6:00 P.M. in City Hall except as otherwise designated by the Planning Commission unless a meeting has been noticed as taking place virtually. If a stay at home order or other disruptive event has occurred that affects Port Angeles and precludes the Planning Commission from meeting in City Hall, meetings shall be noticed and the alternative physical or virtual location shall be specified in the notice.

Any change in the hour, date, and place of regular meetings shall be given wide publicity for the convenience of persons having business before the Commission. When the regular meeting day falls on a legal holiday, the replacement date will be designated by the Planning Commission with notice posted to the public per the Open Public Meetings Act.

Section 2. Recessed Meetings

Any regular meeting may be recessed to a definite time, place, and date by a majority vote of the Planning Commission members present at the meeting.

Section 3. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the Chair or Planning staff with approval of the Chair.

Section 4. Cancellation of Regular Meetings

In the event it is necessary to cancel a meeting due to lack of agenda issues, Planning staff will contact the Chair and each Commission member prior to the meeting and will provide notice to the public per the Open Public Meetings Act.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings

Notice of all regular and special meetings shall be given by the Executive Secretary to the members of the Planning Commission in accordance with current RCWs. Notice to members of the Planning Commission and to members of the public of all special meetings shall be provided at least 2 days (48 hours) prior to the special meeting.

In addition to the provision of the notice of all special meetings to the members of the Planning Commission, notice shall be provided to each local newspaper of general circulation in the City of Port Angeles and on the Newsflash located on the official City of Port Angeles Webpage. Said notice shall be transmitted electronically or mailed at least 24 hours before the time of the meeting specified in the notice. The notice shall state the time and place of the meeting and the business to be transacted by the Commission.

The meeting agenda for the next regular meetings shall be closed on Friday at the close of business five (5) days prior to the next regular meeting of the Planning Commission except that urgent matters may be inserted on the agenda later at the discretion of the Chair.

Petitions and communications from the audience and matters brought to the meeting by the Planning Staff and Commission members, which are not on the agenda for the meeting, may be received and discussed at the meeting. However, no official action may be taken on any matter at a Planning Commission meeting which is not included on the agenda for that meeting or which has been added to the agenda after it has been received by the Planning Commission members except that this requirement may be suspended at any meeting by the unanimous vote of the members present at the meeting.

<u>Section 6. Order of Business - Regular Meeting for Administrative, Routine, and Hearing-Type Matters</u>

- (a) Call to order by Chair
- (b) Roll call
- (c) Approval of minutes of preceding meeting
- (d) Public hearings/Other business
- (e) Communications from the Public
- (f) Staff Updates
- (g) Reports of Commission Members

(h) Adjournment

Section 7. Order of Business - Regular Meeting for Discussion of Matters Related to Comprehensive Planning

- (a) Call to order by Chair
- (b) Roll call
- (c) Approval of minutes of preceding meeting
- (d) Staff Updates for current business
- (e) Reports from Planning Commission members and committees
- (f) Communications from audience (related to comprehensive planning only)
- (g) Communications from Planning Commission members
- (h) Adjourn

Section 8. Operational Guidelines

- (a) All requests and applications on zoning, annexations, and vacations will be tabled if the applicant or an authorized representative is not present at the hearing on the request or application.
- (b) All requests and applications will be tabled if all essential information is not provided to the Planning Department staff by Friday, five days prior to the regular Wednesday meetings of the Planning Commission for timely analysis and inclusion into the Commissioners information packets.
- (c) All requests and applications requiring legal opinion or interpretation will be tabled until the Planning Commission has received an opinion or interpretation from the City Attorney.
- (d) The Commission shall act as a body in making its decisions and in announcing them.
- (e) Willful misrepresentation of information pertaining to a request or application will void that request or application upon discovery of the misrepresentation.
- (f) The Planning Commission will not commence a new hearing after 10 P.M. unless agreed upon by the Planning Commission.

Section 9. Public Hearing Procedure

- (a) Chair introduces the discussion item orally and outlines the public hearing procedures to be followed during the public hearing process. The Chair then reads qualifying questions to the Commissioners regarding the Appearance of Fairness and Conflict of Interest Doctrines and opens the public hearing.
- (b) Planning Staff presents a staff report and provides a recommendation. Commissioners are permitted to ask the Chair or staff any relevant questions about the application. The public hearing will be opened with a brief explanation of the procedures to be followed
- (c) The spokesperson for proponents in the audience shall be given an opportunity to speak in favor of the application. Information submitted should be factual, relevant, and not merely duplication of previous presentation(s). A reasonable time (10 minutes) shall be

- allowed the spokesman; others shall be limited to short supporting remarks (5 minutes). Each person speaking shall give their name, location of residence, and nature of the interest in the matter. The Chair may allow additional public testimony if the issue warrants it. Any data presented shall be retained by staff and marked as an exhibit.
- (d) The spokesperson for opponents in the audience shall be given an opportunity to speak against the application. Information submitted should be factual, relevant, and not merely a duplication of a previous presentation. A reasonable time (10 minutes) shall be allowed the spokesman; others shall be limited to short supporting remarks (5 minutes). Each person speaking shall give his or her name, location of residence, and nature of the interest in the matter. The Chair may allow additional public testimony if the issue warrants it. Any data presented shall be retained by staff and marked as an exhibit.
- (e) Other interested parties shall be allowed to comment briefly (5 minutes) or make inquiries.
- (f) There can be a brief rebuttal (5 minutes) for proponents and opponents each heard separately and consecutively, with presentation limited to their spokesperson. The rebuttal shall be limited to factual statements pertaining to previous testimony. The Chair may allow additional public testimony if the issue warrants it.
- (g) The public hearing is closed. Commissioners voice their considerations and pose any relevant questions through the Chair. Specific questions may be posed through the Chair to a particular speaker to clarify testimony previously presented.
- (h) Motion for disposition is presented and an action taken.

Section 10. Quorum

Four members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the taking of official action. If there are vacancies on the Commission, quorum shall constitute a majority of the existing membership.

Section 11. Motions

Motions shall be restated by the Chair before a vote is taken. The names of the members making and seconding a motion shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Section 12. Voting

Any action taken by a majority of those present, when those present constitute a quorum, at any regular, recessed, or special meeting of the Planning Commission shall be deemed and taken as the action of the Commission except that any proposed change of the Zoning Map must be approved by a majority of the total membership of the Planning Commission.

Voting on amendments to the Zoning Ordinance and Map, all matters requiring a public hearing before the Planning Commission, and all matters referred to the Planning Commission by the City Council shall be by the vote of each member and shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Section 13. Staff Reports

On all matters considered by the Planning Commission, the report and recommendations, if any, of the Planning staff shall be presented to the Commission and shall become part of the formal record of the action and recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Section 14. Conflict of Interest and Appearance of Fairness

Any member of the Planning Commission who has an interest in any matter before the Commission that would or could tend to prejudice his or her actions thereon, shall so publicly indicate this fact and shall abstain from voting or participating in any way in the Commission's action on that matter.

Section 15. Attendance

Attendance at regular meetings and executive sessions is expected of all Commission members. Any members anticipating absence from an official meeting or executive session shall notify the Chair or Executive Secretary in advance. Any absence may be excused by the Commission, even for an extended period, provided the absence is approved in advance.

Section 16. Parliamentary Procedure

Parliamentary procedure in Planning Commission meetings shall be governed by *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* unless it is specifically provided otherwise in these Bylaws, in other Planning Commission resolutions, in City Ordinances, or in the State of Washington Planning Enabling Act (Chapter 35.63 RCW).

Section 17. Public Nature of Meetings and Records

All regular, recessed, and special meetings, hearings, records, and accounts shall be open to the public provided, however, executive sessions may be held by the Commission as provided in RCW 42.30.110.

ARTICLE V - COMMITTEES

Section 1. Establishment of Committees

The Planning Commission may establish such standing or special committees as it deems advisable and assign each committee specific duties or functions. Each standing committee shall consist of 3 members. No standing or special committee shall have the power to commit the Planning Commission to the endorsement of any plan or program without the plan or program submitted and approved by a quorum of the Commission.

Section 2. Appointment and Terms of Committee Members

The Chair of the Planning Commission shall appoint the members of each standing or special committee and shall name the chair of each committee. The members of each standing committee shall be appointed at the first regular meeting in July for a term of one year. Special committees may be appointed at such times and for such purposes and terms as the Planning Commission approves.

Section 3. Committee Vacancies

Vacancies on committees shall be filled immediately by the Chair of the Planning Commission for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 4. Meetings of Committees

The committees shall meet at the call of the committee chairman; in addition the Chair of the Planning Commission shall also have the authority to call a special meeting of any committee at any time and upon such notice as They may specify.

The Planning Staff shall issue notice of committee meetings at the request of a committee chair or the Planning Commission Chair.

Section 5. Quorum and Voting

The *majority of the members appointed* shall constitute a quorum of all committees. The affirmative vote of a majority of the committee membership shall be required for the adoption of a matter before the committee.

ARTICLE VI - AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting by the affirmative vote of five (5) members of the Planning Commission provided that the proposed amendments have been submitted in writing at a previous meeting.

Amended April 14, 2021

 $As \ amended: \ 2/23/76; \ 8/23/78; \ 5/23/79; \ 1/19/88; \ 3/16/90; \ 4/25/90; \ 4/29/90; \ 6/23/93; \ 1/12/94; \ 3/24/2004; \ 5/08/13; \ 01/25/2017; \ 8/26/20; \ 4/14/21$